GDDHPL GR DWARKA D&eVARIYA HIGHWAY
PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members,
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 3" (Third) Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31t March
2022.

FINANCIALS HIGHLIGHTS
The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended 31t March 2022 are as under:

(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31% March 2022 31° March 2021
Revenue from Operations 46,853.70 23,143.84
Other Income 159.71 516.53
Total Income 47,013.41 23,660.37
Less: Expenses 43,770.89 22441.61
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (LBT) 3,242.52 1218.76
Less: Tax Expense 816.08 306.77
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 2,426.44 911.99

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the Company has reported Total Revenue of Rs. 47,013.41 Lakhs as
compared to Rs. 23,660.37 Lakhs in Financial Year 2020-2021.

Profit after Tax for the year ended 315t March 2022 is Rs. 2,426.44 Lakhs as against Profit of Rs. 911.99
Lakhs for the year ended 315 March 2021.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in the nature of Company’s business during the Financial Year 2021-22.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there was no change in the capital structure of the Company. The
Authorised Capital of the Company was Rs. 31,00,00,000 divided into 3,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Capital of the Company was Rs. 9,50,00,000 consisting of
95,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential
rights, sweat equity shares or bonus shares during the year under review.

DIVIDEND
Considering the requirement of the funds for business operations of the Company, your directors think it
prudent not to recommend dividend for the financial year ended 315t March 2022 (previous year: Nil).

TRANSFER TO RESERVE
Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the Reserves of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES.
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Ventures.

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11, Udaipur-313 002 (Rajasthan)
Ph.:+91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email : spv@grinfra.com, Website : www.grinfra.com

CIN : U45201RJ2019PTC064358



SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulator or
court or tribunal impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and / or commitments affecting the financial position of your
company which has occurred from the end of the financial year upto the date of signing of this Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) were appointed by the Shareholders at Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 30™ September 2020 as the Statutory Auditors for a period of
five years to hold office upto the conclusion of the 6" Annual General Meeting. They have audited the
financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year under review. The observations of Statutory
Auditors in their Report read with relevant Notes to Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore, do not
require further explanation. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark. Further, there was no incidence of frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-
section (12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the Central Government.

Cost Records and Auditors
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records
are made and maintained.

M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants have audited the Cost Statements of the Company and
submitted the Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 315t March 2022. The report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Further, the Board has approved appointment of M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co.; Cost Accountants as
Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2023. The remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors is required to be ratified by the members, the Board recommends the same for approval by
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN: 03262761) and Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN:
09307480) were appointed as Additional Directors of the company with effect from 31 January 2022 and
6™ April 2022 respectively, who shall hold the office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The Board recommends their appointment as Directors on the Board of the Company for consideration
of the members in ensuing AGM.

Further, the Board also recommends appointment of Mrs. Suhani Jain (DIN: 08559224) as women Director
on the Board of the Company for consideration of the members in the ensuing AGM.

Mr. Karan Agarwal (DIN: 07560879) and Mr. Anand Rathi (DIN: 02791023) resigned from directorship with
effect from 1°* March 2022 and 6™ April 2022 respectively. The board placed on records their appreciation
for the contributions made by them during their tenure as directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that:
a) In preparation of Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2021-22, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material departures;



b) They have selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of financial year and of the Profit of the Company for the financial year;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) They have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Company being unlisted sub clause (e) of Section 134(3) is not applicable.

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
As the Company is not required to appoint an Independent Director, therefore, the requirement to obtain
declaration from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company.

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

The provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act regarding conservation of Energy and Technology
absorption are not applicable to the Company. Further there was no foreign exchange Inflow or Outflow
during the year under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
During the Financial Year under review, the provisions of Section 135 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable on the company.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Financial Year 2021-2022, all Related Party Transactions entered into by your Company with
related parties were in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. Further, the Company has
not entered into any material contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with any related party as per
materiality criteria given under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, hence disclosure in Form AOC-
2 is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the Financial year under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits
prescribed by provision of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Act.

None of the employee of the Company holds any equity share of the Company nor is relative of any
Director or KMP of the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral, and legal business conduct.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated Vigil Mechanism which provides a robust framework
for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. Specifically, employees can raise concerns regarding any
discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any
instances of fraud by or against your Company. During Financial Year under review, no complaint was
received by the Company.



PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Your company has neither made any loan or investment, nor any guarantee has been given. Your Company
falls within scope of the definition “Infrastructure Company” as provided by the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act with regards to loans,
Guarantees and Investments.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Details of Board meetings held during financial year 2021-22 alongwith attendance of directors therein
are as under:

S. No. Date of Board Meeting Mr. Karan Agarwal* | Mr. Anand Rathi*

1 26.05.2021 Yes Yes

2 02.07.2021 Yes Yes

3 29.10.2021 Yes Yes

4 31.01.2022 Yes Yes
Meetings eligible to attend 4 4
Meetings attended 4 4

*Ceased to be director of the company w.e.f. 01** March 2022 and Mr. Varun Bhasin was appointed as
Additional Director w.e.f. 31 January 2022.

#Ceased to be director of the company w.e.f. 6% April 2022 and Mr. Kuldeep Jain was appointed as
Additional Director w.e.f. 6" April 2022.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 177 relating to constitution of Audit Committee are not applicable on the
Company.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178 relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
not applicable on the Company. Accordingly company did not have adopted a policy on Directors’
appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has a strong and well embedded system of internal controls. This ensures that all assets
are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal control system has been designed to ensure
that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other statements and for
maintaining accountability of assets. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE
The provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 are not applicable on the Company.



RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Your company regularly reviews the risk management system and major risks associated with business
activities of the company. Further, the Board of Directors takes appropriate measures, reviews the major
risks associated with the Company and takes all requisite measures to minimize them.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by Institute of Companies
Secretaries of India i.e. SS-1 & SS-2 on meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings,
respectively.

ANNUAL RETURN
Since the Company does not have any website, hence the provision of disclosure of web-link of annual
return in Board'’s report is not applicable.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

2. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions,
hence disclosure under rule (8)(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the National Highways Authority of India, Shareholders,
Bankers, Central and State Government officials for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

: Kuldeep Jain Varun Bhasin
Additional Director Additional Director
DIN: 09307480 DIN: 03262761

Date: 12.05.2022
Place: Gurugram
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR DWARKA
DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31st March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2022, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by
ICAI and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

.



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - | a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure II.



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact its financial position;

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any
provisioning

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 10 3

/

CA Mahesh Menaria

Partner

M No. 400828

UDIN: 22400828AJLQLA5903

Udaipur, May 12, 2022



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Conftinued)

Annexure - [ to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR DWARKA DEVARIYA
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no
fixed assets in existence with company.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit.
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed

amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

V!



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

viii)

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year.

Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions.
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture
Holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for
which they were taken.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date

for the period under audit.



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

xix)

Xx)

xxi)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - 1A of the Reserve Bank
of India, 1934.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN 1

43

/

CA Mahesh Menaria

Partner

M No. 400828

UDIN: 22400828AJLQLA5903

Udaipur, May 12, 2022



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)
Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR DWARKA DEVARIYA
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR DWARKA
DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or

error.



GR DWARKA DEVARIYA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR 43W

Y4
CA Ma h Menaria
Partner
M No. 400828
UDIN: 22400828AJLQLA5903

Udaipur, May 12, 2022



GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
CIN U45201RJ2019PTC064358

Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2022

in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
{a) Other non-current assets 4 26,771.95 1,859.48
(b) Tax assets 6 72554 359.04
Total non-current assets 27497 49 2,218.52
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7 1,368.09 1,125.79
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 8 114.00 1.045.19
(iti) Other bank balances 9 195.00 275.25
(iv) Other financial assets 5 3472 17.02
(b) Other current assets 4 13,362.06 13.657.04
Total current assets 15,073,687 16,120.29
Total assets 4257136 18,338.81
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 950.00 950.60
(b) Other equity 11 330473 78.29
Total equity 4,254.73 1,828.29
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 30,992,438 4,815.40
{b} Deferred tax liabilities {net) 21 1,121.80 305.72
Total non-current liabilities 32,114.28 512112
Current Habilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 12 517.23 -
(ii} Trade payables - total outstanding dues of 13
(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,870.08 8.04544
b} Other current Habilities 14 815.04 3,343.96
Total current liabilities 6,202.35 11,389.40
Total liabilities 38,316.63 16,510.52
Tatal equity and liabilities 42,571.36 18,338.81
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
tes to financial statements 4-33

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

CA Mahe
Partner
Membership No: 400828
Place: Udaipur

Date : 12 May 2022

Varun Bhasin
Additional Director
DIN: 03262761
Place: Gurugram
Date : 12 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i

Kuldeep Jain
Additional Director
DIN: 09307480
Place: Udaipur
Date : 12 May 2022



GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited

CIN U45201RJ2019PTC064358

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2022

¢ in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No.  For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income

Revenue from operations 15 46,853.70 23,143.84

Other income 16 159.71 516.53
Total income 4701341 23,680.37
Expenses

Construction costs 17 42,287.89 21,548.60

Employee benefits expense 18 - 154

Finance costs 19 1.254.31 67457

Otther expenses 20 228.69 213.90
Total expenses 43,770.89 2244161
Profit before tax 3,242.52 121876
Tax expense:

Current tax = 2

Deferred tax charge 21 816.08 30677
Total tax expenses 816.08 30677
Profit for the yvear/ period 242644 911.9%
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) - -

Income tax relating to above 5 =
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax - _
Total comprehensive income for the year/ period 2,426.44 g]1.90
Earnings per share
(MNominal value of share Rs.10 each)

Basic {Rs.) 29 2554 10.65

Diluted {(Rs) 29 2554 10.65
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes on financial statements 4-33

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
. INo. 101543W

Firm'

=
CA Mahesh Menaria | %

Partner g\
Membership No: 400828 0’761-9
Place: Udaipur

Date : 12 May 2022

400828
UDAIPUR

&/

N
d AccO>

Varun Bhasin
Additional Director
DIN: 03262761
Place: Gurugram
Date : 12 Mav 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

30“9'

Kuldeep Jain
Additional Dirvecier
DIN: 09307480
Place: Udaipur
Date : 12 Mav 2022




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited

CIN U45201RJ2019PTC064358
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2022

€ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,24252 1,218.76
Adjustments for:
Interest income (159.71) (516,53}
Finance costs 1254.31 67457
433712 1,376.80
Working capital adjustments :
{Increase) in financial and non-financial assets (24,635.21) (15,174 66}
{Increasze) in trade receivables (242.28) (1,125.79)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables {3.175.36) £023.15
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities (2,528.92) 316494
Cash (used in) from operating activities (26,244.65) (373356}
Income tax paid (net) (366.50) n.013
Net cash {used in) operating activities (A) {26,611.15) (3,733.57)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 15971 516.53
Redemptions in bank deposits (net} 8025 =
Net cash generated from investing activities (B} 239.96 516.33
Cash flows from financing achvities
Interest paid (1,770.96} (10709}
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 949.00
Proceeds from nen-current borrowings 27,2109 3.417.20
Net cash generated from financing activities {C) 25,440.00 4,259.11
Net {decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (931.19) 1,040.07
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 1.045.19 512
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 11400 1,045.19
Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of {refer note 8} < i Lakdrs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 11400 104519
Cash and cash equivalents 11408 1,045.19
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flow 114.00 1,045.19

2 The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7

"Statement of Cash Flows"




Notes: {continued)

3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: 2 i Lakhs
Asat As at
Net cash flow th
1 April 2021 cteash How ) 31 March 2022
Non-current borrowings 481540 2492335 1.253.73 30,992.48
Current borrowings - - 517.23 517.23
Total 481540 24,923.35 1,770.96 31,509.71
As at Asat
Net cash fl Oth
1 April 2020 AL i 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings 1.006.25 331011 499.04 481540
Current borrowings = - - .
Total 1,006.25 3,310.11 459.04 4,515.40
4 Figures in brackets represent outflows.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2-3
4-33

Notes on financial statements

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Charfered Accoymtants

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

Membership No: 400828
Place: Udaipur

Date: 12 May 2022

Varun Bhasin
Additiwonal Director
DIN: 13262761
Place: Gurugram
Date : 12 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sheu?”

Kuldeep Jain
Addittonal Director
DIN: 09307480
Place: Udaipur
Date: 12 May 2022




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
CIN U45201R[2019PTC064358

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2022

A. Equity share capital £ in Lakhis
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2020 10,000 1.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors T 2
Changes in equity share capital during the year 94,90,000 9449.00
Balance as at 31 March 2021 05,00,000 950.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 95,00,000 950.00

B. Other Equity & in Lakhs

P . " Total
Particulars Retained Earnings Other equity
Balance as at 01 April 2020 (33.70) (33.70)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021
Profit for the year 911.99 911.99
Balance as at 31 March 2021 878.29 B78.29

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022
Profit for the year 242644 242644
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,304.73 3,304.73

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
4-33

Notes on financial statements
The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Charfered Aceountants

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

Membership No: 400528
Place: Udaipur

Date : 12 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Varun Bhasin
Additional Directn
DIN: D32:2761
Place; Gurugram
Date ; 12 May 2022

o

—

Jeet¥*
Kuldeep Jain
Additional Director
DIN: (H307450
Place: Udaipur
Date : 12 May 2022




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

~

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Reporting entfity

GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited (‘the Company’) having Registered office at GR House, Hiran
Magri, Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on March 26, 2019
as a Private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) as a subsidiary of G R Infraprojects
Limited.

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis,
("DBOT Annuity"or " Hybrid Annuity ") the project relating to Four Laning of Dwarka-Khambaliya-Devariya
Section from km 203.500 to km 176.500 and from km 171.800 to km 125.000 of NH-151A in the State of Gujarat
under Bharatmala Pariyojna to be executed on Hybrid Annuity Mode (Package - I). The company has entered
into concession agreement with the National Highway Authority of India (“NHAI”) dated 22nd May, 2019.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on
May 12, 2022.

Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Functional and presentation curremncy

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

¢. Basis of ineasurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrual basis of accounting except
certain financial instruments measured at fair values.

d. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

- Recognition of Current / Deferred tax expense




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

- Revenue recognition under service concession arrangement
- Provision for doubtful debts

e. Measurement of fair values

Some of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Investments
- Financial instruments




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

3. Significant accounting polices

a. Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company
at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost

" in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss.

b. Financial instruments

i

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured
at fair value except Trade receivable which is measured at transaction price in accordance with Ind AS
115. Transaction price that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction price directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable ri ght (not
contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

Classification and subsequent measureiment

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of
business model and contractual cashflows in which they are held.

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

At amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding;

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

At present, the Company does not have investments in any debt securities classified as FVOCL

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
Further, management also evaluates whether the contractual cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest considering the contractual terms of the instrument.

. For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued. (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVIPL ~ These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. N
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GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of loan to the extent
it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down. The facility fee and related
payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS 109. The said facility fee is deferred
and treated as a transaction cost when draw-down occurs; it is not amortised prior to the draw-down.

ifi. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Further, the contractual terms of the
existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification is treated as the derecognition of
original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such newly recognized financial
asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in respective carrying amount, if
any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of a financial asset does not
result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated at
original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

¢. Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Operatingcycle is

,-;"-\the time from start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents. ST
A Q




GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

d. Property, plant and equipment

i.  Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment coniprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

ii.  Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

ifi.  Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv.  Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives as prescribed under schedule Il of the Act.

e. Intangible assets

i. Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

if. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

iti. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an
intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the /caxnﬂmgg s
amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when thé asset is™
7\ derecognised. a /
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iv. Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation
and amortisation in financial statement.

f. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in civil construction work and / or production of inventories are not written down below cost
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their present location and condition.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on
weighted average cost method. Trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average cost method basis.

g Impairment
i Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- confract assets recognised under contract with customers; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI including debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except
for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured as
12 month expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months expected credit losses
are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within12_

months).

months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is les$ than 32740\
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and when estimating
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Impairinent of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs)
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Vel
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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h. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. Under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

i. Provisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not
provided for.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision
is reversed.”

“Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.”

Contingencies

Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

j. Revenue from coutracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent.

Service Concession Arrangement

Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major
economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise.

With respect to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated between those relating to the construction
services and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately.

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue

H
from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the 11atur&\ 4«?
\ consideration. The intangible asset is used to the extent that the Company receives a right ta < ‘ the
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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users of the public service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybrid annuity basis contain three streams of
revenue- Construction revenue, Financing income and Operations and maintenance (O&M) income. The
construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, Q&M
income is recognised in the operating phase of the DBOT, while finance income is recognised over a
concession period based on the imputed interest method.

Revenue from construction of contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of
completion of the contract. While determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is
reflected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be
ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer
e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due.

Contract Habilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Others
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

k. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of
lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

a) Asalessee

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options).

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement d
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the Eeasg‘ijo
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial dizdct cduts
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the
commencement date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payment made.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a
lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on
modification is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the
scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with
the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications,
discounting rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of
all the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) Asa lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Recognition of interest income or expense, Insurance claim received
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

- Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.
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m. Income tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to an jtem recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

i Current tax
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amou nt expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is ntended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

it Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Any tax credit available is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case,

the current and deferred tax income /expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive [ RCW EAN
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.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to setile on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest period presented

Operating segiments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in
hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement.

“Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits / (Loss) before tax is adjusted for
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.”
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t. Standards notified but not yet effective

Following are the amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
on 23rd March, 2022) which are effective for annual periods beginning after 1st April 2022. The Company
intends to adopt these standards or amendments from the effective date, as applicable and relevant. These
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. This
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company when it will adopt the
respective standards.

- Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - For items produced during testing/trail phase,
clarification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss and considered as part of cost of PPE.

- Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets - Provisions on what constitutes
cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included.

- Ind AS 41 Agriculture - This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements
of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and
enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for
the most appropriate fair value measurement.

- Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Ind AS - Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation
Difference in case of subsidiary/associate/ JV's date of transition to Ind AS is subsequent to that of
Parent.

- Ind AS 103 - Business Combination - Reference to revised Conceptual Framework is included. For
contingent liabilities / levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of
contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed.

- Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it
applies the 10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.
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4 Other Assets

Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note Na. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Right to receive annuity from concession grantor 27 22,953.34 =
Unamortised loan processing fee - 495.30
GST Input receivable 3,818.61 136418
26,771.95 1,859.45
Current
Right to receive annuity from concession grantor 7 1272483 8,151.92
Mobilisation advances given to G R Infraprojects Limited (Parent Company) - 50027
Advance to suppliers for goods and services - noz
Prepaid expenses 7.72 15.85
Balance with government authorities
GST TDS receivable 29.51 278.98
13,362.06 13,657.04
40,1401 15,516.52
5 Other financial assets (Unsecured considered good) T in Laghs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Others 3472 17.02
ek S 17.02
6 Tax assets
Z iy Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Advance income tax {net of provision for fax) 725.54 359.04

725.54 359.04
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7 Trade receivables
1 Lakis
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current
Trade receivables 136809 1,125.79
Less: expected credit loss / allowance for doubtful debts - -

1,368.09 1,125.79

Break-up of Security details
Unsecured, considered good 1,368.00 1,125.79
Trade Receivables - credit impaired -

1,368.09 L125.79

Impairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Balance as at begning of the year & -
Add; Allowance for the year « s
Less: Adjustment during the year 3 -

Balance as at end of the year - -

Below is Trade receivables ageing schedule based on oustanding from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current but Total
not due Lessthané 6 months - 12 years 2-3years More than 3 ola
month 1 vear years
31 March 2022
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 947.75 33285 87.49 - - 1,368.09
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant J - - - - - -
increase in credit risk - - = = # - .
Undisputed Trade receivable - eredit impaired = & - N , « 2
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - = F: -
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total = 947.75 332.85 87.49 = - 1,368.09
31 March 2021
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considerad good - 102557 16022 - - - 1,125.79
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - = = = = =
increase in credit risk - = % i . - .
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - . - - < 5
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired = - - = o % 3
Total - 1,025.57 100.22 - - B 1,125.79

Notes:-

a} Trade Receivables are non interest bearing,

b) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

Retention money relating to construction contracls are included in above trade receivables as they are recoverable within the operating cycle of the Company,

$in Laklis

Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Retention money 420.34 1,106.06
420,34 1,106.06

8 Cash and cash equivalents
& it Lakds
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance with banks
in current accounts 3375 1,045.19
Depasits with eriginal maturity of less than three months * 80125 o

114.00 104519

9 Other bank balances
Tin Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months # 195.00 275.25
- .";2 Hig ,-',f':'- N 195.00 275,25

PP oy
# Deposits lien with banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSEA}Y and Major Maintenadcei€serve Accobgl \
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10

Equity Share capital

& Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised 3,100.60 3,100.00
310,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 316000 3,104.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
95,00,000 equity shares of R=. 10 each 950.00 950.00
950.00 950,00
Reconciliation of equity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
i Laklis
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the vear 95,060,000 950.00 16.000 1.00
Add: Issued during the vear R - 94,906,000 949.00
At the end of the year 95,000,000 930.00 93,00,000 950,00
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Numbers %% of total Numbers % of total share in
share in class class
Equity share of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up held by
- G R Infraprojects Limited { Parent Company ) G5, 00,000 186,00 493,00,000 100.00

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at Mach 31, 2022 As at Mach 31, 2021

Promoter name No. of foof total % Change No. of #of total % Change during the
Shares shares during the yvear Shares shares year
G R Infraprojects Limited 95,00,000 160.00 - 95,00,000 100.00 =

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has & single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual
assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to lime. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a pall {not on show of
hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or
other sums presently payable have nol been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares,

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all
preferential amounts in propertion to the number of equity shares held.

Other equity

<in Lakhs
Particulars Reh\i‘ned Total

Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2020 (33.70) (33.70)
Profit for the vear 911.99 911.99
Total comprehensive income for the vear - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 §78.29 878.29
Profit for the year 242644 242644
Total comprehensive income for the year = =
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,304.73 3,304.73
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12 Non-current borrowings

¢ i Laklis
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured loans - from banks
Union Bank of India 8.203.15 "
Indian Bank 8.099.05 -
PNB Bank 5,181.15 -
Unsecured :
Loan from G R Infraprojects Limited (parent company) 10,026.36 451540
31,509.71 4,815.40
Non-current portion of long term borrowings 30,992.48 481540
Current maturities of long term borrowings ) 517.23 -
31,509.71 451540
Notes:

1 Undawn borrowing facility
Disclosure of undrawn borrowing facilities {excluding non-fund based facilities) towards future projects to be executed by the Company is Rs 20,349 lakhs (31
March 2021 Rs 39,745 lakhs),
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

13 Trade payables

& ur Lakis

Particulars Ref Note No. As at
31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of

Micto enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) - -
Creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.870.08 4544
4,870.08 804544
Ageing for trade payables from due date
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
As at 31 Mar 2022 vear years
Undisputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,870.08 - - - 4,870.08
Disputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Undisputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 4,870.068 - - - 4,870.08
Less than1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
As at 31 Mar 2021 Year years
Undisputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 804544 - - - 8,045.44
Disputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Undisputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 8,045.44 - - - 8,045.44
Notes:-

a) Trade payable are non interest bearing and generally have eredit period of 30-90 days.
b} For terms and conditions telating to related party receivables, refer Note 22

< iir Lakhs

¢} Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

Trade pavables =
Payable to related parties -

d)  Details of dues to micro and small enterprizes as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
erp

Details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars 31 March 2022
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining .
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during cach accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of defay in making payment -
{which has been paid but beyend the appointed day during the vear} but without

adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting =
vear; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, -
untif such date when the interest dyes above are actually paid to the simall enterprise,

for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

31 March 2021

]

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of
micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 has been made in the standalone financial statements
as at the reporting date based on the information received and available with the Company. On the basis of such information, no interest is payable to any micro,

smail and medium enterprises

14 Other current liabilities

2 it Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Customer advances 645.02 3,255.99
Statutory liability
TDS payable 170,02 87.97

81504

3,343.96
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Revenue from operations

< it Lakhs

Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers 40,906.16 21,348 49
Revenue from contracts with customers {utility) 1.660.80 53437

Revenue from contracts with customers (COs} 41.99 -

Finance income 4,244.75 1,260.98
46,853.70 23,143.54

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest income

- on Mobilisation advances to Parent Company 145.40 499.45
-on deposits with banks 1451 17.05
159.71 516.53
Construction costs
¢ it Lakis
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Civil sub-contract charges 40,309.39 20,863.25
Civil sub-contract charges (Utility} 1.733.00 529.02
Civil sub-contract charges (COS) 41.57 -
Labour Cess 203.93 13433
42,287.89 21,548.60
Employee benefits expenses
< in Lakis

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus - 454
= 454
Finance costs
Tin Laklis
Particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Interest on Borrowing

- bank 565.49 -

- others 53600 383.23
Interest on maobilisation advances 644 17553
Other borrowing cost 92.38 115.81

1,254.31 674.57
Other expenses
& in Lakhs
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Insurance expenses 8412 5077
Independent engineers fees 150.85 131.98
Annual Custody Fees 0.23 0.5
Payment to auditors {refor note (i) below) 0.60 145
Legal and professional charges &12 21.52
Bank charges 4.68 015
Miscellaneous expenses 0.09 =
228.69 213.90
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(i) Payment to auditors

& iy Lakies

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Far the year ended
31 March 2021

Payment to auditors (exclusive of G&T)

- as auditor
- Statutory audit 0.60 0.30
- Other services - 015
0.60 0.45
Tax expense
Income tax (income} / expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
2 i Lakiis
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax

Current tax on profit for the period

Deferred tax
Attributable lo-

Crrigination and reversal of lemporary differences (refer niote D) 816.08 306.77
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 816.08 306.77
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
& n Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 3,24252 1,218.76
Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate 816.08 306.77
Effect of
Expenses disallowable as per normal incame tax = -
Tax expense 8§16.08 306.77
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
As on 31 March 2022 )
Movement in temporary differences & in Lakhs
Particul Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
T (assets) liabilities  (assets}/ labilities
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial = g -
instrument at amortised cost
Service concession income - 1,385.71 138571
Unused tax losses 263.91) - (263.91)
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities (263.91) 1,385.71 1,121.80
As on 31 March 2021
Movement in temporary differences <in Laklis
Particul Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
artieulars (assets) liabilities  {assets) / liabilities
Difference in carrving value and tax base in measurement of financial - - 7
instrument at amortised cost
Service concession income - 317.39 317.39
MAT credit entitlement (129.82) 11815 (11671
Net deferved tax (assets) / labilities (129.82) 435.54 305.72

Deferred tax assef has been recognised as it is reasonably certain that the deferred tax asset shall be realised against future taxable incomes.
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D. Recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities
As on 31 March 2022

Movement in temporary differences € i Lakdis
Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at 31
1 April 2021 profit or loss March 2022
during the year
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - - -
insfrument at amortised cost
Service concession income 317.39 L068.32 1.385.71
Unused tax losses (11.67) (252.24) {263.91)
305.72 816.08 1,121.80
As on 31 March 2021
Movement in temporary differences & i Lakhs
Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at
1 April 2020 profit or loss 31 March 2021
during the year
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 12878 {128.78) -
instrument at amortized cost
Service concession income - 317.39 37X
Unused tax losses (120.82) 118.15 (11.67)
(1.03) 306.76 305,72
E. Unused Tax Losses & in Lakhs
Particulars Balance as at 31 March 2022 Balance as at 31 March 2021
Carry Forward  Expiry assessment Carry Borward Losses Expiry assessment
Losses year year
AY 2020-21 397 2028-29 3.97 2028-29
AY 2021-22 42723 2029-30 4223 2029-30
AY 202223 1,002.23 2080-31
Total 1,048.43 16.20

Unused tax losses recognised 1,048.43 46.20
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Related party disclosure

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the vear

(a) Parentcompany:
G R Infraprojects Limited

(b) Key Management Personnel {"KMP"}:
Mr. Anand Rathi - Director (resigned w.ef. 6 April 2022)
Mr. Karan Agarwal - Director (resigned w.e.f. 1 March 2022}

Ms. Surabhi Bhandari - Company Secretary {appointed w.e.f. 1 April 2020 and resigned w.e.f. 20 November 2020

Mr. Varun Bhasin-Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 31 January 2022)
Mr. Kuldeep Jain - Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 6 Aprii 2022)

B. Related party transactions with Parent Company and its closing balances

The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than those
available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions with non-key management personnel

related entities on an arm's length basis.

The aggregate value of the Company’s iransactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities over which they

have control or significant influence is as follows:

€ it Laklis
Nature of transaction Transaction value
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Loan received
i) G R Infraprojects Limited 4,903.67 391668
(b} Loan repaid
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 4425 -
{c) Share Capital issued
(i} G R Infraprojects Limited - 949,00
(d} Construction cosls
(i} G R Infraprojects Limited 42,083.96 21,394.27
(e) Mobilisation advances given <
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited - 9,304.05
(fy Mobilisation advances adjusted
{1} G R Infraprojects Limited 521027 4,093.78
(g) Interest received on mobilisation advances
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 145.40 499 48
{h} Interest paid on unsecured loan
{iy G R Infraprojects Limited 536.00 383.23
{ii Remuneration
- 454

(i} Ms. Surabhi Bhandari

Particulars Balance outstanding receivable/(payable)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a} Loan pavable
{f} G R Infraprojects Limited 10,026.36 4,815.40
{b} Trade pavable
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 4,823.26 8,033.07
{¢} Mobilisation advances receivable
- 521027

{1} G R Infraprojects Limited
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23 Fair Value Measurements

A, Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2022 2 in Lakhs
Fair Value
. Level 1 - Quoted Level 2- Level 3 - Significant Total
Particilars EVIPL* Fvocps mortised Total price in active Significant unobservable
fost markets observable inputs inputs
Trade receivables - - 1.363.09 1,368.09 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents s % 114.00 114.00 = - - -
Other bank balance - - 195.00 195.00 - = - -
Other financial assets - - 34.72 34.72 - - - -
Total Financial assets - - 1,711.81 1,711.81 - - = -
Borrowings = - 3150971 31,509.71 - - = -
Trade payable - - 4,570.08 487008 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 36,379.79 36,379.79 - - - 2
As at 31 Mar 2021 & in Lakhs
Fair Value
Level 1- Quoted Level 2- Level 3 - Significant Total
Particulars FVTPL* FVOCI** Amortised cost Total price in active Significant inabiervabile
markets observable inputs inputs

Trade receivables - = 1,125.79 112379 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,045.19 1.045.19 - - - =
Other bank balance - - 275.25 27aas - - - -
Otther financial assets - - 17.02 17.02 - = = =
Total Financial assets - - 2,463.25 2,463.25 - = - £
Borrowings - - 4,815.40 481540 = ] - ”
Trade payable - - 804544 204544 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 12,860.84 12,860.84 - - = -

*FVTPL= Fair value through profit and loss
*FVOCT = Fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 tategory above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the vears.

Valuation technigue used to determine fair value:

® Inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock enchange andfor NAY declared by the Funds.

« Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions such as FIMMDA/FEDAL
¢ Inputs included in Level 5 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash
Flow Method.

Note: All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

24 Financial instr risk manag t objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company
is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continunusly monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties,

A, Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the company’s incame or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments.
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B. Credit risk
Credit risk is the rish thal a counterparty will nol meet its abligations under a financia! instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company
is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposils with banks. The company’s expnsure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are conlinuously moenitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other financial assets
This comprises mainly of construction asset receivable - Right for Annuity receivable from NHAI deposits with banks . Credit risk arising from these
construciion assets is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are NHAL

C. Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs."). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

D. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. Company’s borrowing includes unsecured foan taken loan from banks & the
Parent Company. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilitics has been provided below:

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:
2 i Lakls
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets 27525 275.25

Financial liabilities -

Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets 34.72 17.02
Financial liabilities 31,509.71 1,815.40

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/Tower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
of floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points
interest rate across aif vicld curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been caleulated based on risk exposures
outstanding as at that date, The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

Sensitivity analysis
< in Lakhs
Particulars Impact on profit before tax
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest rate

- increase by 160 basis points {314.73) {47.98)
- decrease by 100 basis points 31475 47.98
E. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another firancial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable Insses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company irvest in liquid mutual funds to meet the immediate obligations.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The foltowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted,

< in Laklis
As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than1 1-5 years More than 5
year years
Barrowings 31,509.71 31,509.71 517.23 5.082.12 2591036
Trade payvables 4,870.08 4,870.08 4,870.08 =
Other current financial liabilities = = = A .
Total 36,379.79 36,379.79 5,387.31 506212 25,910.36
As at 31 Mar 2021 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
Year vears
Borrowings 481540 4,815.40 - 4,815.40 1,006.25
Trade payables 84544 5.045.44 804544 -

Other current financial liabilities - .
Total 12,860.84 12,860.84 5,045.44
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Capital management

For the purpuse of the Company’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains 2 strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders.

The Company marages ils capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. Breaches in meeling the financial covenants would permit (he lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings, There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any inlerest bearing loans and borrowing during the year. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity. The Company’s policy is to keep the net debt to equity ratio below 3. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

¢ in Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total borrowings 31,509.71 481540
Less: cash and cash equivalents 114.00 1,045.19
Adjusted net debt 31,395.71 3770
Equity share capital 950.00 950.00
Other equity 3,304.73 §78.29
Total equity 4,254.73 1,828.29
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 7.38 2.06
No charges were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
Ratio 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Ratio (in times) 243 142
{Current assets/ Current liabilities)
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 1.50 -
{ Total Debl / Total Equity )
{Total Debt = Debt comprises of current borrowings( including current maturities of long term borrowings), non current
borrowings and interest accrued on borrowings and excludes the unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the
holding company (G R Infraprojects Limited).
Total Equity (net worth) = Equity share capital+Other equity *+ unsecured borrowing taken from the helding company)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 3.59 281
{ (Eamning before interest and tax and depreciation)/ (principai repayment of non-current bortowings (excluding repayment
of unsecured borrowing taken from the holding company) made during the period and finance costs) )
Return on equity ratio (%) 16.99% 13.73%
(Profit for the period or year / Net worth)
{Net Worth: Equity share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the holding company?
Inventory burnover ratio { in times) NA NA
{ Revenue from operation { annualised) / Average Inventory}
Trade receivables turnover ratio {in limes) 202 493
( Revenue from operation { annualised) / Average account receivable)
(Average account receivable = Average trade receivables + average unbilled revenue)
Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) 6.52 5.30
{ Purchases made during the vear ( annualised) / Average account pavable)
Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 528.14% 439.21%

{ Revenue from operation ( annualised) / working capital)

(Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities)

Net profit ratio (%) 5.16% 3.85%
(Profit/ (loss) for the period/Total Income)

Return on capital employed (%) 12.36% 27.24%
(Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or vear / Capital employed)

{Capital emploved = Total assets - Current liabilities)

Refurn on [nvestment (%) 5.70% 497%
{Profit for the year/ Total assets)
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Disclosure pursuant to appendix E of Ind AS 115 for Service Concession Arrangements

< tir Lakhs

Name of entity

Description of the arrangement

Significant terms of the arrangement

Annuity receivable from
concession grantor

{including Contract assets
receivables)
GR Dwarka  {The Company is formed as a special purpose Period of concession: 2020-2038 31 March 2022
Devariya  jvehicle (SPV) to design. build, operate and transfer|Remuneration : 40% during construction period and
Highway {basis, ("DBOT Annuityor * Hybrid Annuity ") the [balance 0% in half vearly annuity in 15 vears as per
Private Limited |project relating to Four Laning of Dwarka- concession agreement
Khamballya-Devariya Section from km 208500 0 |1 ocernons grant from concession grantor : No 35,678.17|

km 176.500 and from km 171.800 to km 125.000 of
NH-151A in the State of Gujarat under Bharatmala
Pariyojna fo be executed on Hybrid Annuity Mode
{Package - I} which shall be partly financed by the
Concessionaire who shall recover its investment
and costs through payment to be made by the
authority, in accordance with the terms and
condition to be set in concession agreement to be

entered into.

Infrastructure return at the end of concession period :

Yes

Investment and renewal obligations ; Nil
Re-pricing dates : No

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is
determined : NA

Premium pavable to grantor : Nil

31 March 2021

8,151.92
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Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard {Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

< i Lakdis
A. Disaggregated revenue information Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i} Type of service rendered
Sale of services 46,853.70 23,143 84
Total 46,853.70 23,143.84
ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography
India 46,853.70 23,143.84
Outside India - -
Total 46,853.70 23,145.84
iii) Timing of Revenue recognition
Revenue from Goods and Services transferred to customers at a point in me - -
Revenue from Goods and Services transferred to customers over Hime 46,853.70 23,143.84
Total 46,853.70 23,143.84
B. Contract balances:
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers.
& Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables
Opening balance 112579 -
Closing balance 1.368.09 1,125.79
The increase / decrease in trade receivables is mainly due to increase / decrease in sales.
Annuity receivable from concession grantor (including Contract assets receivables)
Opening balance §,151.92 104.74
35,678.17 8,151.92

m

Closing balance

Contract assets/ financial assets (annuity recievable from concession grantor) are recognised in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard ({Ind AS) 115,
when the Company has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.

£ in Lakhs

Contract liabilities
Opening balance 3,255.99
Closing balance 645.02
Contract Habilities include advance from customers and transaction price allocated o unexpired service obligations.
. The amount of revenue recognized from
Year ended

31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

- Performance obligations satisfied in previous vears
B P ¥

- Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the vear 2,846,941
g E 3

. Performance obligation

i} Saies of Services:

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the assets is under control of customer and they simultaneously receives and consumes the benefiis

provided by the Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of services.

Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:

< i Laklis

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue as per contracted price 46,833.70 23,143.84
Adjustments
Claims - -
Variable consideration - performance bonus - =
Revenue from contract with customers 46,853.70 23,143.84
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29 Earnings per share

< in Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Face value per equity share {in Rs.} 10.00 10,00
{a}  Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 242644 911.99
{b)  Number of equity shares at the beginning of the vear / period 95,080,000 10,000
{c) Equity shares issued during the year / period - 54,90,000
{d} Number of equity shares at the end of the year / period 95,00,000 95,00,000
(e} Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS 95,00,000 85,64.000
{fy Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 95,00,000 85,64,000
Eamings Per Share {(in Rs.):
- Basicearning per share (a/e) 25.54 10.65
2554 10.65

- Diluted earning per share (a/f)

Note :

Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the vear adjusted by the number of equity shares
issued during the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding
as a proportion of total number of days during the year / period.

30 Segment reporting

Basis for segmentation

in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting”, the Company is primarily engaged in a business of civil construction and has no
ather primary reportable segments. The Managing Director of the Company allocate the resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus he is the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating resuits of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to
be disclosed,

Information about geographical areas
As the Company operates in [ndia only, hence no separale geographical segment is disclosed.
Information about major customers
Revenue from operations of Rs 468537 lakhs are derived from single customer (NHAT} which amounts to 10% or more of the Company’s revenue.
¥ in Lakhs

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(i) Inclirect tax matters
(i} Direct tax matters -
(i1i) Civil matters -

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees :
Guarantees given to third parties

Total = o

B Commitments
{a) Other commilments 24.035.77 61,993 84

32 The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its business operations, Equidity position and recoverability of its asset balances
as at March 31, 2022 based on the internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these audited standalone financial statement.
Also, the management does not see any risks in the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due
The Company has adequate funds and/or unutilized fund-based credit facilities available, to take care of any urgent requirement of funds, Accordingly, the
Company believes that there is no material impact of Covid 19 on these audited standalone financial statement. The final impact of COVID-19 may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these audited standalone financia! statement and hence management will continue to monitor any
material changes to the future economic conditions,

33 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever consider necessary.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chaptrepd Acconnianis

Fix . 101543W
- 4
/ N VM M _)J‘\ et

CA Mahesh Menaria Varun Bhasin Kuldeep Jain
Partuer Addibienal Director Additional Director
Membership Mo: 400828 DIN: 13262761 DIN: 09307480
Place: Udaipur Place: Gurugram Place: Udaipur
Date: 12 May 2022 Date : 12 Mav 2022 Date : 12 May 2022




